
From: Stephen Goldberg <stephen.goldberg@practicallawyer.com> 
Sent: Friday, October 9, 2020 1:08 PM
To: Michael Jenkins <Michael.Jenkins@bbklaw.com>
Cc: bambamx33@aol.com; Stephen Goldberg <stephen.goldberg@practicallawyer.com>
Subject: Hermosa Beach-Greenwich Undergrouding District

CAUTION - EXTERNAL SENDER.

Michael:

I have been asked by a number of Hermosa Beach residents to reach out to you regarding the
pending action/vote re: undergrounding utilities in what has been referred to as the “North
Greenwich Village Undergrounding District”.

In general, these residents are concerned about the process (or lack thereof) which appears to be
heading toward a vote by ballot which expires next week.  The biggest concern has to do with the
fact that they never received any sort of Notice that this was happening prior to the City Council
vote and mailing of the ballots, and were then given a relatively short period of time in which to try
to understand what is going on.  By the time people had any real information to enable them to
engage in meaningful discussion, many people had already voted, and further, the COVID-19
pandemic has made it particularly difficult to gather neighbors together.

From what they have been able to ascertain, a small group of residents have spent the past several
years trying to get signatures evidencing interest in possible undergrounding, based on some
guidelines which require the signatures of over 60% of the affected residents.  The signatures were
submitted to the City, even though a large number of them were not valid.  When this was called to
the City’s attention, the City’s response was that it was not following the guidelines but rather, a
1913 statute that does not require any signatures.

It seems to my clients that a significant number of steps were taken during a time when many of
the neighbors were completely unaware of any process whatsoever.  Engineers were hired, bids
reviewed, allocations made and final decisions (subject only to a mail in ballot with virtually no
information included) made with no input from most of the affected parties.

A number of questions remain, including:
















































































                 • What Notice, if any does the City believe it gave to the affected residents?
   • Did the City of Hermosa Beach staff evaluate and approve the Engineer’s Report? If so,

any comments, notes or related material?
                 • Did the City of Hermosa Beach give any instructions to the Engineering firm that
prepared the Engineer's Report?
                 • What, if any, criteria were given by the City to the Engineering firm prior to the
Engineer’s report?
                  • If the signatures were not actually required, why did the Engineer “certify” that the
signatures were sufficient?  How did he reach this conclusion?
                 • How were the boundaries of the District formed, and why were several residences that
benefit from improved views not included in the Assessment District?
                 • Was the assumption that Robert Greenberg was going to deal with undergrounding the
poles and utility wires at the North End of Hermosa Beach a factor in the determination of where
the lines would be drawn?  Does Mr. Greenberg still intend to do this, since it appears that he is
selling his house?  If not, should the lines be re-drawn?
                 • How were the assessment criteria determined?  What were the criteria that the
Engineer used to evaluate the weight of each component of the assessment, (referring to Safety,
Reliability and Aesthetics).  Were there any advisors or statistics used to evaluate these factors?
                 • Will the six residents who are given a reduction of 1/2 of their assessment because of a
guy wire and small pole at the side of their homes have their voting weight also reduced by half?
                  • If Frontier is being benefited, shouldn’t it contribute?  Is it paying anything to the City.
 
From my clients’ review of the available information, it seems like there are some adjustments that
can and should be made.  For example, it appears that for some aspects of the project, we are
actually paying substantially more than what is being paid just a few yards away in Manhattan
Beach even though the Manhattan project has more impediments.  Further, it appears that there
may have been some gerrymandering of the “District” as 1) it does not match the City’s own “Utility
Undergrounding Districts” map; and 2) there are a number of impacted properties that appear to
be outside the District.
 
My clients would be very interested in having a dialogue about these issues, and trying to sort out
some of the apparent inconsistencies.  I would appreciate your thoughts on this, both substantively
and procedurally, to see what we can do to accomplish the best and fairest result.  I have attached
a Petition signed by the owners of approximately 40% of the affected Strand owners seeking a brief
delay in the proceedings to allow for further discussion.  Of the remaining 60%, only one or two
owners declined to support the request for the delay, and the others were unable to be reached.
 
I would appreciate hearing from you at your earliest convenience.
 
Sincerely,
--  
Stephen B. Goldberg

Stephen B. Goldberg

Attorneys at Law
A Professional Corporation



707 Torrance Boulevard, Suite 200
Redondo Beach, CA 90277
Phone  (310) 540-3199
Fax  (310) 316-1823
http://www.practicallawyer.com
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